
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


June 6, 2019, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the April 4, 2019 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 19-06, Adopting Water Rates for 


FY 2018-19 and Analysis of protests received. (Est. time 20 min.) 
 


 B. Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 19-07, Adopting the FY 2018-19 
Operating and Capital Improvement Budget (Est. time 20 min.) 


 
 


VI. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
  Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Section 


54956.9 based on correspondence from Carlos Abela (one potential case) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (con't.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Customer construction at 14631 Old Cazadero Road; 


Customer: Carlos Abela (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re District Strategic Planning (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Water tax legislation (Est. time 10 min.) 
 


 
VII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
  Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Section 


54956.9 based on correspondence from Carlos Abela (one potential case) 
 


VIII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


IX. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 


  


X. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 2







 
ADJOURN 


 3







 4


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (con't.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
May 2, 2019 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Rich Holmer 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent: Tim Lipinski 
  
Staff in Attendance: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, Legal Counsel 
      Rachel Hundley, Legal Counsel 
      Carlos Abela 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (6:30 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by Vice President Richard Holmer at 6:33 
p.m. 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Director Holmer reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
approve the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer seconded.  Comments were made 
by Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue..  Motion carried 3-0-1.  Director Marquez de la Plata abstained 
from voting on Item A (Minutes) because he was absent from that meeting.  The following items 
were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the April 4, 2019 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 


 
 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence (None) 
 


 1







 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:33 p.m.) 


 
Public comment was made by Carlos Abela.  Brief discussion ensued.  Mr. Abela's issue was 
agendized for the June Board meeting.  Comments were made by Robin Donoghue. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:41 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:41 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re FY 2018-19 3rd Quarter Actual v. Budgeted 


(Operations and Capital) Report thru March 31, 2019.  The GM provided an overview 
of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   


 
V-B. (6:50 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2019-20 Operating and Capital Budget.  


The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  This item was 
agendized for the June meeting. 


 
V-C. (7:07 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District rate study.  The GM provided an overview.  


Board discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Robin Donoghue. 
 
V-D. (7:30 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Replacing District legal counsel representative 


(Robin Donoghue retiring).  .The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board 
discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Robin Donoghue.  Comments were made 
by Rachel Hundley. 


 
V-E. (7:39 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District property at 17448 River Lane.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued. 
 
V-F. (7:51 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re water tax legislation update.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued. 
 
V-G. (7:55 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 19-08, General Manager Legislative 


Advisory Action.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  
Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 19-08, Adding a Legislative Advocacy 
Policy Number 3530 Authorizing the General Manager to Respond to Potential Legislation 
in a Timely Fashion, as edited below: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,.... 
 
 1. Accepts CSDA Legislative Advocacy Policy 1055 as Sweetwater 


Springs Policy... 
 .... 
 4. Directs General Manager to coordinate response with County 


Supervisors and community groups. 
  
 Director Marquez de la Plata seconded.  Motion carried 4-0. 


 
 


VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:57 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Water production and sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville rainfall 
4. River Lane property sale 
5. 2019 CIP 
6. In-House Construction Projects 


 2







 3


7. Gantt Chart 
 
Brief discussion ensued. 
 
 


VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:05 p.m.) 


 
1. Director Robb-Wilder announced that she would not be here for the July meeting. 
2. Director Lipinski shared the Russian River Sanitation District rate increase brochure.  
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:10 p.m.) 
 
1. FY 2019-20 Draft Budget and rates 
2. Actual vs. Budgeted - 3Q 
3. Water tax 
4. Cost of service discussion 


 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER (6:30 p.m.)

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:33 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:41 p.m.)*

		VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:57 p.m.)

		VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:05 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A.1 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: June 6, 2018 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 WATER RATES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  


A.  Hold a public hearing on the proposed Fiscal Year 2019-2020 (FY20) Water Rates; 
B.  Approve Resolution 19-06, which establishes water rates for FY20, increasing the Base 
Rate, Water Usage Charge, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges by 3%. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  Adopts water rates that will increase water sales revenues by approximately 
$90,000 to fund District operations and capital programs in FY20 and beyond.    
 
DISCUSSION: 


Sweetwater Springs Water District’s current financial condition is good with one exception – lack 
of sustainable funding for ongoing capital improvements.   The District has adequate revenues to 
fund operations, and debt repayment is covered mostly by the annual Flat Charge that appears on 
the property tax bill and by the Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC).  In recent years, after 
payment of all other expenses, the District has had approximately $250,000 to $400,000 in 
revenues from water rates to contribute towards capital expenses.  This amount is too small to 
fund the capital programs needed by the District to bring its infrastructure up to standard.  In the 
past, the District had funding support for its capital projects from the Russian River 
Redevelopment Committee (RRROC) and the Sonoma County Community Redevelopment 
Agency, but that source of support has ended, and capital projects are now funded by the District.   


In the current fiscal year, the District is self-funding the 2019 Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 
(ATEK filter replacement of Monte Rio greensand filters).   This project is estimated to cost 
approximately $250,000.  This filter project is the replacement of a system that has exceeded its 
useful life.  For the FY20 CIP, the District plans a year of no capital project and will use the 
additional revenues to fund capital projects in coming years.   


There’s no question that the District’s infrastructure is substandard.  Even with the capital 
projects of the past several years, the District averages approximately 110 leaks per year (down 
from over 300 prior to the 2008 startup of capital improvements), 20% system losses, and 
requires many service interruptions to repair leaks.  AWWA data show an average of .25 leaks 
per mile of distribution mains.  Guerneville has approximately 66 miles of line and should see 20 
or less annual leak repairs.  Most of the facilities inherited by Sweetwater Springs Water District 







Approval of FY20 Water Rates  2  
June 6, 2019 


when it took over Citizen’s Utilities in 1992 were constructed haphazardly, and all of it needs 
replacing, except that replaced or constructed in the last twenty years.  The District’s 2018-25 
CIP is a “catch-up” CIP which aims to bring the District’s water system up to an acceptable 
standard, as measured by water quality, system leaks, system losses, and fire protection.  Beyond 
the 2018-25 CIP, additional capital expenses will be needed to continue the catch-up and to 
maintain the water system to an acceptable standard.     


To address this situation, in 2011, the Board directed Staff to investigate how to get to a funding 
level that will provide for a sustainable CIP.  We define sustainable CIP funding as at least 
$500,000 in net capital funding (net operating funds minus debt payments not covered by the 
capital debt reduction charge revenue and the annual assessment) that can be transferred to the 
Capital Program.   This would allow the District to fund $1 million capital projects, the 
approximate size of the District's typical capital projects, every other year.   
 
The proposed 3% rate increase being considered would follow the current rate structure, which is 
based on the 2007 Rate Study.  That study recommended annual increases of up to 4% to the Base 
Rate and Water Usage Charges and increases to the Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) to 
fully cover debt costs.  In 2011 several alternatives were investigated based on a financial 
planning model that forecast District finances through FY 2020.  That investigation and 
accompanying Board meetings recommended a series of relatively small (3%) annual increases to 
the Base Rate, Water Usage Charges, and Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC).  The analysis 
showed that nine years of 3% increases would bring Capital Program funding to the target 
sustainable level.  The recommended FY20 3% increase will be the 9th year of 3% increases to 
those charges.   
 
District staff also recommends raising the fee for weekday after-hours calls (after 3 pm) from $70 to 
$100 and use of hydrant meter use fee from $50 to $300 per month.  These fee increases will not have 
a substantial impact on revenues but are proposed to keep these fees more in line with the water rates 
District regular customers pay and the actual cost of water.   
 
Table 1 shows the proposed Base Rate, Water Usage, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges for 
various customer classes and tiers.    Table 2 shows the effects of the proposed 3% rate increase 
on typical District water customers based on the various rate classes and median 90th percentile 
water use for those classes.  The table shows the effect on the FY20 water bills ($2.60 bimonthly 
for median single-family residential).  
 
Observations: 
 


 The proposed water rates are rounded to the nearest 5 cents (this makes calculations and 
change making it easier for staff).  That slightly increases the tier rates because last year 
the rounding slightly decreased the tier rates.    


 
 The proposed rate increases are not in response to drought water sales reductions and are 


not increases to specifically encourage reducing water use.  The District's rate structure 
does include tiers that do encourage efficient use of water regardless of where we are in a 
drought cycle.  If water use continues to fall, the District will not achieve the desired 
increase in revenues, but we believe that now that this drought is over (but another will 
return some day), water will return to near pre-drought levels, and the continued program 







Approval of FY20 Water Rates  3  
June 6, 2019 


of small annual increases will have the desired effect of building capital funding to the 
$500,000 target.  


 
 


Table 1.  Proposed Sweetwater Springs Water District Bimonthly Water Rates for 
FY 2019-20, 3% Increase for Water Usage and Base Rates, and CDRC 


Meter 
Size 
(in) 


Base Rate Water Usage Rate  
Capital 
Debt 
Reduction 
Charge 


 
Base Rate + 
CDRC 
 


  Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4   
   1.50   3.00   4.50   6.50    


  Max 
Usage 
(Hcf) 


Max 
Usage 
(Hcf) 


Max 
Usage 
(Hcf) 


Max 
Usage 
(Hcf) 


  


0.625  $65.25  8 20 80 >80 $11.95  $77.20 
1  $163.15  20 50 200 >200  $29.90   $193.05 


1.5  $326.25  40 100 400 >400  $59.75  $386.00 
2  $522.00  64 160 640 >640  $95.60  $617.60 


 The Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) increases for meter sizes larger than 
0.625 apply only to Commercial and Public Accounts.   


 The Base Rate and CDRC are also increased by the Multiple Unit Multiplier of 0.55 for Multi-
Family accounts.  For example, with a 2-unit account, the Base Rate is $101.14, and the CDRC is 
$18.53. 


 


  







Approval of FY20 Water Rates  4  
June 6, 2019 


 
 


Number of Accounts
Median 90% Median 90% Median 90%


Median Water Use 7 22 12 32 15 82
Median Bill Current 85.10$       130.05$       133.57$  192.44$    106.85$    395.05$        
Median Bill Proposed 87.70$       134.20$       137.66$  198.56$    110.20$    408.20$        
Bimonthly Difference 2.60$         4.15$           4.09$      6.12$        3.35$        13.15$         


Table 2.  3% Water Rate Increase Effect on Typical Water Users by Class  (100 cubic feet (Units), 
FY19-20


3060 284 135


Multi-Family 
Residential, 2 UnitsSingle Family Residential Commercial 5/8 Meter


 
 
Proposition 218 Notice 
 
Notice for proposed water rate increases were mailed to all property owners by April 
19, 2019. 3,356 notices were mailed.  The Notice provided for an increase to the 
Base Rate, Water Usage and Capital Debt Reduction Charges of up to 3% for FY 
2019 and included the proposed rate schedules and a protest form.   At the time of 
this agenda report writing (May 30, 2019), 111 protests had been received.  Below 
are specific comments received with the protest votes: 
 
Why is it always the customer who pays?  Can you not restructure finances and 
sacrifice from (at) the top? 
 
We have a small cottage on a small lot (35’x40’) in Villa Grande that has been family 
property since 1956.  I am elderly (86) and would like to keep the cottage for my 
grandkids and great grandkids.  I have worked hard to keep the place neat and well 
cared for.  The cottage is only used a few times during the year as a vacation spot 
and our watering system is only in use during the summer months.  The proposed 
rate is higher per cubic feet than my home water bill from Contra Costa Water 
District.  This is a hardship for me and I believe part time usage should be given a 
consideration. 
 
This is a summer cottage used 20-30 days per year!  We are charged the same as 
annual residents who use the system 365 days per year.  Unfair! 
 
 
 
 
 







Resolution No. 19-06 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING WATER RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 


2019-2020 
  


WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 31007, the District Board of Directors is 
authorized to establish rates and charges sufficient to pay for operating expenses, 
provide for repairs and depreciation of works and pay for the principal and interest on 
debt; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 31025, the District shall fix and through the 
General Manager collect water rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the 2007 Rate Study conducted by Brelje and Race (“2007 Rate 
Study”) and other information provided to the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors 
has evaluated the anticipated revenues and expenditures necessary to operate the 
District and cover the costs of providing water services to customers of the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, in April of 2019 District staff sent formal notices of the public hearing on the 
proposed rate structure for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 (FY20) in accordance with the 
requirements of Article XIII-D, Section 6(a) of the California Constitution, and has 
included other rate information on the District’s website; and   
 
WHEREAS, the formal notices advised ratepayers and property owners of the new 
proposed rate structure and the process for submitting protests to said rate structure to 
the District, in accordance with the requirements of Article XIII-D, Section 6(a) of the 
California Constitution; and   
 
WHEREAS, the District also wishes to change certain fees that are not property related 
to adjust those fees in concert with the water rates and service charges that District 
customers pay, said fees are for weekday after hours calls and hydrant meter rental; and   
 
WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors conducted a public hearing on June 6, 2019 
to hear public testimony on the proposed water rate structure for FY20 and heard all 
testimony regarding the proposed water rates and accepted all related comments and 
protests for FY20; and 
 
WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the public hearing the District Clerk tabulated the 
number of protests and reported that there was not a majority protest of the proposed 
water rate structure for FY20; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony provided at the time of the public 
hearing on this matter, the Board of Directors finds as follows: 
 


1.  The proposed rate increases set forth in Exhibit “A” follow the 
recommendations of the 2007 Rate Study that was commissioned by the District 
Board of Directors as a basis for restructuring water rates commencing in May 
2009. 
 


2.  Pursuant to the analysis and recommendations contained in the 2007 Rate 
Study, the revenues derived from the proposed water rates do not exceed the 
District’s actual cost of providing water service, are not used for any purpose 







Resolution 19-06, FY 2019-2020 Water Rates 2 
June 6, 2019 
 


other than that for which the charges were imposed and are not levied for 
general revenue purposes. 
 


3. Based on the 2007 Rate Study, the proposed water rates do not exceed the 
proportional cost of the service attributable to the properties receiving service, 
and the charges are imposed only on those properties actually receiving service 
or those for which service is immediately available. 
 
4.  Proper notice of the proposed rate structure and notice of a public hearing on 
the matter has been given to all ratepayers and owners of identified parcels 
within the District, in accordance with applicable law. 
 
5.  The proposed water rates, as described in Exhibit "A", attached, were not 
protested by a majority of the persons eligible to protest said rate structure.  


 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District adopts the following: 
 
Section 1. Base Rate, Water Usage, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges.  
Effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 2019, the bi-monthly Base Rate, Water 
Usage Rate, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges shall be as shown in Table 1 of 
Exhibit “A”, attached. 


Section 2. Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of 
this Resolution is for any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
the Resolution.  The District Board of Directors hereby declares that it would have 
passed this Resolution and each section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase 
thereof irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, subsections, sentences, 
clauses or phrases may be held invalid or unconstitutional. 


 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on June 6, 
2019, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 


           
      Tim Lipinski 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Christine Hanley  
Acting Clerk of the Board of Directors 







Resolution 19-06, FY 2019-2020 Water Rates 3 
June 6, 2019 
 
Exhibit A 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Water Service Base Rate, Usage Charges and 


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
 


Effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 2019 
 
The rates indicated below shall be effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 
2019, and these fees, rates and charges shall supersede and replace those in 
Resolution 18-06.   
 
 
 
Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Rates for 2019-20 


Base Rate, Water Usage Rate, and Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
    Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4   


  


Water Usage Rate 
  


$1.50  
  


$3.00  
  


$4.50  
  


$6.50    


  
A.  Residential Single Family; no meter multiplier 


  Base Rate 


Tier 1  
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 2 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 3 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 4 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Capital Debt 
Reduction 


Charge 
(CDRC) 


Any meter 
size   $    65.25  8 20 80 >80 $       11.95 


B.  Residential Multiple Family – Multiple Unit Multiplier is 0.55 for every extra unit; 
no meter multiplier; charges for 2-4 units below. 


Any meter 
size Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


2 units $       101.14 12.4 31 124 >124 $     18.53 


3 units $     137.03  16.8 42 168 >168 $       25.09 


4 units $     172.92  21.2 53 212 >212 $       31.66 


C.  Commercial and Public – meter multiplier based on meter size; no multiple unit 
multiplier. 


Meter Size 
(in) Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


0.625  $65.25  8 20 80 >80 $11.95 


1  $163.15  20 50 200 >200  $29.90 


1.5  $326.25  40 100 400 >400  $59.75 


2  $522.00  64 160 640 >640  $95.60 


 







Resolution 19-06, FY 2019-2020 Water Rates 4 
June 6, 2019 
 
 
USER CLASSIFICATIONS. For the purposes of assessing water 
charges provided for in this exhibit, user classifications shall be as 
follows: 
1. Residential Single Family: Applicable to all accounts serving one 
detached dwelling unit. 
2. Residential Multiple Family: Applicable to all accounts serving two or more 
living units, as defined by District Policy 3010.70. 
3. Commercial and Public: Applicable, without regard to meter size, to all 
accounts serving mercantile buildings, motels and other short-term lodging 
establishments, office buildings, institutional buildings, parks, schools, churches, 
and other commercial and public agency establishments. 
 
Other District Fees: 
 
This section amends parts of Exhibit 1 of Ordinance 29 which establishes certain 
District fees and Special Charges.   
 
Weekdays after 3pm service calls and turn-ons:   $100 
Policy 3020.130 
 
Use of hydrant meter: $300/ month. 
Policy 3090.70 (c) 
 





		Item V-A.1 - FY2019-2020 New Water Rates

		Item V-A.2 - Resolution 19-06 - Water Rates for FY20

		Sweetwater Springs Water District

		Water Service Base Rate, Usage Charges and Capital Debt Reduction Charge








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B.1 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: June 6, 2019 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT BUDGET 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  A. Hold a public hearing on the proposed Fiscal Year 2019-


2020 (FY20) Budget;  
B.  Approve Resolution 19-07 which approves the FY20 
Budget 


 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  The FY20 Budget includes FY20 expenses of $3.4 million to be paid 
for by revenues of $3.5 million.  The revenue above FY20 expenses will be added to 
reserves for future year capital projects.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The FY20 Budget agenda report comes with three attachments: 


 
 Resolution 19-07 which approves the FY20 Budget 
 Exhibit A. FY20 Budget Report which includes Attachment A. FY20 Detailed 


Budget which is the line item budget document with complete budget detail.   
 
The draft FY 2019-2020 (FY20) Budget was first presented at the April meeting.  Further 
discussions occurred at the May Board Meeting.  Highlights of the FY20 Budget include: 
 


 The 3% water rate increase will increase District revenues by approximately 
$90,000. 


 2% Salary increase for staff based on the 2015 Union Memorandum of 
Understanding.  


 Payment of $120,000 for the CalPERS unfunded actuarial liability (UAL). 
 The transfer to the Capital Improvement Reserve Fund (CIRF) is $190,000.   
 No Capital Project for FY20. 
 Completion of the 2019 CIP, ATEK filter replacement of Monte Rio greensand 


filters.  Construction will complete in early FY20. 
 Cost of Service Study. 


 







Approval of FY20 Budget  2  
June 6, 2019 


Exhibit A is the FY20 Budget Report.  It includes a summary of the budget detail, the 
revenues and expense pie charts and discussion of notable budget items and 
Attachment A which is the FY20 Budget detail.    This document plus information on the 
3% water rates increase will be on the District website.   


 
District Reserves 
 
The FY20 Budget includes the District Reserve Policy approved in September 2009:   
 


 Operating Budget Cash Reserve – a reserve based on 15% of the Operating 
Budget expenses to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses at the 
start of each fiscal year. 


 Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget expenses for dealing with 
economic uncertainty, and emergencies and disaster-related expenses.   


 Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 
District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


 Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 
 


The FY20 Budget projects that District Policy Reserves are at $1,363,574 and Reserves 
Above District Policy are $2,091,013 with total reserves at $3,454,587 at the end of the fiscal 
year.       
    
In summary, the FY20 Budget is a funding plan will allow the District to accomplish its 
mission of providing good quality water to District customers and end the year in good 
financial shape.   
 







Resolution No. 19-07 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING THE FY 2019-20 OPERATING 


AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET  
  
 


 BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District hereby adopts the attached FY 2019-20 Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budget.  
 


      
 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of 
the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, 
at a meeting held on June 6, 2019, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 


           
      Tim Lipinski 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Christine Hanley  
Acting Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 







Exhibit A 


  
 
 


Sweetwater Springs 
Water District 


 
Annual Operating & Capital 


Improvement Budget 
 


2019-20 Fiscal Year 
(For the period July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020) 


 
Board of Directors 


 
Tim Lipinski, President 


Richard Holmer, Vice President 
Sukey Robb-Wilder, Financial Coordinator 


Gaylord Schaap  
Pip Marquez de la Plata 


 


General Manager 
Ed Fortner 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Annual Operating & Capital Improvement Budget 


2019-2020 Fiscal Year 
Summary 


 
In Fiscal Year 2019-2020 (FY19) Sweetwater Springs Water District has budgeted 
operating expenses of $2.1 million, debt repayment of $1.0 million, capital improvement 
expenses of $25,000 and transfers to the capital reserve of approximately $250,000. 
Figures 1 and 2 respectively show the distribution of these expenses and sources of 
funds to pay for these expenses.    


Capital 


Improvements,
1%


$25,000


Capital Reserve,


7%
$250,000


Salary and 


Benefits, 
45%


$1,520,768


Debt Repayment, 


30%
$1,028,060


Services and 


Supplies, 
17%


$580,630


F IGURE  1  FY  2020  EXPENSES AND  CAPITAL  
RESERVE


TOTAL  =  $3.4  MILL ION


 


Base Rate Charge 


47%
$1,644,824


Water Usage Charge 


18%
$633,846


CDRC 


9%
$296,383


Assessments 


22%
$777,000


Interest 


1%
$25,000


Rent, Other 


3%
$106,500


Figure 2 FY 2020 Revenue
Total = $3.5 Million


 







FY 2019-20 Budget Report 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 


3 


Table 1 is a summary of the FY20 Budget which is described in detail in the 
following pages.  The FY20 Budget is similar in form and content to prior 
years’ budgets.  The FY20 Budget includes the ninth year of 3% increases for 
the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges and the seventh year of a 3% 
increase to the Capital Debt Reduction Charge which are designed to develop 
sustainable capital project funding.   
 
Table 1  


1


2


3


4


5


6


7


8


9


10


11


12


13


14


15


16


17


18


19


20


21


22


23


24


25


26


27


28


29


30


31


32


33


34


35


36


37


38


39


40


41


42


43


44


45


46


47


48


49


50


51


52


53


54


55


56


57


58


59


60


61


62


63


64


FY 17-18
FINAL 


(CASH)*
 FY18-19 
BUDGET


FY 18-19
Projected


 FY 19-20
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY20-FY19 


Budgets 
REVENUE


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Bill Revenue


4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Charge 279,369 288,172    287,750     296,383 8,211        
4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,550,404 1,557,162 1,596,916  1,644,824 87,662      


597,461 638,176    615,385     633,846 (4,330)       
4031.1. · Total Water Sales 2,147,865  2,195,338 2,212,301  2,278,670  83,332      


Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,427,234 2,483,510 2,500,051 2,575,053 91,543      
Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 163,180 121,600 133,445 124,500 2,900        


Total Income 2,590,414 2,605,110 2,633,496 2,699,553 94,443      
EXPENSES


OPERATING EXPENSES
SALARY & BENEFITS


877,373 914,370 930,800 1,006,400 92,030      
433,325 419,212 436,996 514,368 95,156      


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,310,698 1,333,582 1,367,796 1,520,768 187,186    
SERVICES & SUPPLIES


23,233 25,080 25,170 30,830 5,750        
36,181 33,000 42,000 44,000 11,000      
18,891 21,300 20,500 27,000 5,700        
73,373 100,445 135,800 114,800 14,355      
31,852 35,000 30,500 28,520 (6,480)       
30,564 32,600 32,300 34,100       1,500        
18,917 26,200 25,700 28,200 2,000        
80,291 89,500 110,500 132,500 43,000      
31,081 33,090 33,090 33,090 -                
24,268 29,050 27,050 31,050 2,000        


3,014 3,540 3,440 3,540 -                
100,670 103,000 110,000 113,000 10,000      


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 472,335 531,805 596,050 620,630 88,825      
Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,783,033 1,865,387 1,963,846 2,141,398 276,011    


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $807,381 $739,723 $669,650 $558,155 (181,568)$ 
Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 61,223 50,000 47,000 24,000 (26,000)     
Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 638,615 688,172 618,172 526,383 (161,789)   


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 107,543 1,551 4,478 7,772 6,221        


CAPITAL BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


TOTAL REVENUE 1,882,043 1,465,172 2,940,172 1,313,383 (151,789)   


EXPENSES
TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,010,758 999,142 1,014,610 1,028,060 28,918      


Total Capital Expenses 866,739     275,000    1,058,210  25,000       (250,000)   
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,877,497 1,274,142 2,072,820 1,053,060 (221,082)   
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 4,546 191,030 867,352 260,323 69,293      


Net Capital Funding 477,028 442,581 370,040 268,095
FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 123,508     279,808    279,808     321,210     41,402      
96,475       466,347    466,347     535,350     69,003      


102,315     249,786    249,786     257,015     7,230        
Capital Reserve 250,000     250,000    250,000     250,000     -                


   Total District Policy 773,243     1,245,940 1,245,940  1,363,574  117,634    
TOTAL Reserves EOY 2,314,663  2,410,774 3,186,493  3,454,587  1,043,813 
   Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,541,419  1,164,834 1,940,552  2,091,013  926,179    
DISTRICT FUNDS  


266,474     100,000    886,837     1,022,298  922,298    
123,508     279,808    466,347     321,210     41,402      
96,475       274,995    279,808     535,350     260,355    


102,315     475,027    499,786     507,015     31,989      
75,982       79,315      79,315       79,315       -                
10,850       25,850      25,850       40,850       15,000      


791,250     802,112    802,112     802,112     -                
500,000     -            -            -            -                
146,863          146,438 146,438     146,438     -                


-            -            -            -                -                
200,945     200,000    200,000     208,000     8,000        


CAP ONE AND CITIZENS BANK LOAN (1200)
FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS (0400)
STATE LOANS (0700,0900)
STATE LOANS RESERVES (0800&1000)
PARS*


BUILDING (0200)


Total Transportation & Travel
Total Uniforms


Total Utilities


Operating Budget Reserve (10%+15% of Operating Exp)
Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt)


CIRF (7106-0600)
OPERATING RESERVE ( 0300)
OPERATIONS (0100)
CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY RESERVE (1100)
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION (0500)


Total Rents & Leases


Total Communications
Total Insurances


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles
Total Maint/Repair - Facilities
Total Miscellaneous Expenses


Total Office Expense
Total Operating Supplies


Total Professional Services


Total Benefits


FY 2019-20 OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage Charges + Other


Total Salary


 







FY 2019-20 Budget Report 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 


4 


2019-20 Fiscal Year (FY20) Budget 
 
The annual budget of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) allows the 
District to accomplish its mission which is to provide its customers with quality 
water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective manner and to 
manage District resources for the benefit of the community and environment. The 
District achieves its mission of producing good quality water by pumping Russian River 
underflow from five wells – 3 located at the Guerneville El Bonita well site and 2 located 
at the Monte Rio well site.  That water is then treated in two separate treatment facilities 
at the Highlands site for Guerneville and the Monte Rio well site for Monte Rio and 
environs and distributed through approximately 68 miles of distribution pipes and 3500 
service laterals of varying lengths and stored in 26 tanks and reservoirs.   This system is 
managed, and its operation administered by the District staff of 11 full-time employees.  
The District has an aggressive capital improvement program aimed at maintaining and 
improving the capital infrastructure to industry standards to deliver high-quality water, 
reduce system water losses, and maintain adequate system pressure and fire flow.  The 
annual budget identifies the revenues and expenses that accomplish these tasks. 
 
The FY20 Budget follows the format established in prior years and includes the 
ninth consecutive year of a 3% increase to the Base Rate and Water Usage 
Charges, and the seventh consecutive year of a 3% increase to the Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge. 
 
3% increase to the Base Rate, Water Usage Charges, and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge:   A principal source of revenues for the FY20 Budget is water rates paid in 
bimonthly bills by District customers (Figure 2).  In 2011 District staff did a 
comprehensive multi-year analysis to show that with small annual increases in rates the 
District can develop sustainable funding for needed capital projects to maintain District 
facilities once the current catch up capital improvement program is completed.  The 
financial analysis showed that annual 3% increases over nine years should build into 
$500,000 available annually for capital projects.   FY20 is the ninth year of planned 
annual 3% rate increases designed to achieve the sustainable capital improvement 
program.  More information on the District’s water rates and a water rate calculator can 
be found on the District’s website at www.sweetwatersprings.com.   
 
Net Capital Funding will be approximately $260,000.  Net Capital Funding is the term 
used for estimating the amount of funding developed in the Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budget for funding capital projects (line 43 in Table 1).  It is the sum of the 
operating budget surplus, annual assessments, CDRC, and capital interest minus total 
debt payments.  Net Capital Funding is budgeted to increase because of decreased debt 
payments and reduced operations expenses, plus the effect of the 3% water rate 
increase.  We believe that Net Capital Funding should be near $500,000 for a 
sustainable capital improvement program for the District.  
 
The recent drought has had a big impact on budget planning in this and future years.  
Water sales will continue to be depressed as water use habits recover from the drought 
restrictions required by the State.   Water use in FY 2018 was lower than State direction 
even though the required restrictions have been lifted - approximately 92% of 2013 
which is the State Board standard.  This is a 4% increase in sales over FY 2018.  We 
expect that water use in the coming fiscal year will be at a similar level and that a 3% 
rate increase will result in a 3% revenue increase in water sales.  We expect that once 
customer use rebounds from the drought restrictions, water sales revenue will increase, 



http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/





FY 2019-20 Budget Report 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 


5 


and the District will move more quickly toward reaching the $500,000 net capital funding 
goal.     
 
FY 2020 CIP (Table 2):  The FY20 Capital Budget is minimal with $25,000 budgeted for 
an in-house project.  The FY19 Capital Budget has replacement of the green sand filter 
at the Monte Rio Treatment Plan with the ATEK filter system.     
 
Addressing CalPERS retirement program Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL):  The 
FY20 Budget continues the line item to identify and make accelerated payments for the 
CalPERS UAL.  The Board has determined that this item needs special attention as it 
will continue to impact District finances for many years.  The FY20 payment is $120,000. 
 
District Reserve Policy:   The District Reserve Policy was approved in September 
2009.   The Reserve Policy allows the District to gauge its financial health and 
adequately plan for its future and allows ratepayers to follow this planning.  The District 
Reserve Policy has the following components: 


 
 Operating Budget Cash Reserve - 15% of the annual Operating Budget 


expenses to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses at the start of the 
fiscal year. 


 Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget for unanticipated expenses 
for an economic downturn or other economic crisis, or for dealing with 
emergencies and disaster-related expenses. 


 Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 
District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


 Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 


 
The sum of all district funds is shown in the budget as Total Reserves End of Year 
(EOY).  This is the sum of the District discretionary funds listed in the budget at the end 
of the year.  The difference between Total Reserves EOY and Total District Policy 
Reserves is Reserves Above District Policy.  The District goal is to keep this number 
positive.  The amount above the District Policy Reserve is the amount the District has for 
future capital projects.  The Reserves Above District Policy is a good measure of where 
we are in funding an ongoing capital program.  For FY20, District Policy Reserves are 
at $1,347,574 and Reserves Above District Policy at the end of the fiscal year are 
$2,100,013 with total reserves at $3,447,587.     
 
 Other assumptions used to develop the Operating section of the Budget include: 


 
 Water Usage and Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction Charges will be raised 


3%.    
 Water Usage revenues are based on flat water sales and mid-year water sales 


projections. Thus, the FY20 water usage revenues are estimated to increase by 
3% over the amount projected for FY19.  The drought is over, but it will likely 
take a while for sales to start increasing, thus affecting Water Usage Charge 
revenue. 


 Salaries and Retirement have been adjusted to reflect year 5 of the 2015 Union 
Memorandum of Understanding.  


 
 







FY 2019-20 Budget Report 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 


6 


Line Item Highlights of the FY20 Budget: 
 
The FY20 Operating Budget provides for ongoing costs consistent with previous 
years’ expenditures, except where identified below. 
 
The operating budget encompasses the “expenditures related to the operation, 
maintenance and repair of water facilities,” as well as the billing, collections, accounting, 
fiscal management, and other overall administration. 
 
Water Bill Revenue line items have been adjusted to reflect the 3% increases on 
projected sales revenue in the Base Rate, Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) and 
Water Usage Charges based on flat water sales revenue also includes a 3% increase.  
The 3% water rate increase will increase District revenues by approximately $90,000.  
Operating interest is continued at a relatively low amount to reflect continuing lower 
interest on deposited funds. 
 
Under Expenses, Salaries are budgeted to increase by approximately 10%.  Benefits 
are budgeted to increase approximately $95,000 over the budgeted FY19 budget 
because of increased health insurance premiums and the full time GM and Account 
Clerk.  Salaries and Benefits are a major District expense – approximately 72% of the 
FY20 Operating Budget expenses. 
 
Total Supplies and Services are approximately $49,000 more than the FY19 approved 
budget.  Maintenance/Repair – Facilities is a big cost item in Supplies and Services 
and is budgeted to increase by $14,355 for FY20.   Governmental Fees and is 
budgeted to decrease by $7,000.  Professional Services is budgeted to increase by 
$43,000 due to the Cost of Service Study.  Electricity is a big expense item, is budgeted 
to be $10,000 more than FY19, and is a major expense difference in this category.   
 
Fixed Asset Expenditures are lower than FY19 because we are deferred purchasing a 
previously budgeted truck this year.  There are also substantial expenses for 
Tank/Facilities Sites to repair District tanks. 
 
The Operating Budget has a surplus of approximately $558,155 which is transferred as 
revenue to the Capital Improvement Budget as Capital Improvement Revenue Fund 
(CIRF) ($190,000) Building Fund ($15,000), In-House Construction Fund ($25,000), and 
CDRC revenue ($296,383).   
 
The FY20 Capital Budget has no major project.   
 
Capital Interest revenue has been increased to reflect expected interest rates and 
higher fund amounts in this coming year. 
 
Capital Debt is a major expense item – approximately $1.0 million and 30% of total 
District annual expenses in FY20.   The District has worked hard to keep interest rates 
as low as possible with three refinancings in the past six years during the favorable 
interest rate climate.   District Capital Debt includes: 
 


 General Obligation (GO) Bonds – Approximately $1.58 million remain in the 
USDA bonds that were approved to purchase the District and make needed 
capital improvements and refinanced in part in 2014 with an interest rate of 







FY 2019-20 Budget Report 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 


7 


2.375%.  Annual payment - $64,284, remaining principal is $1,570,629. Paid off 
in 2054.     


 Cap One Bond – The District refinanced the first 20 years of the GO Bonds in 
September 2013 with an interest rate of 3.6%.  Paid off in 2033, the FY20 
payment is $566,548.    Remaining principal is $6,288,000. 


 State Loans - two loans for approximately $3 million which were approved in 
1995-96 for needed improvements.  The smaller loan was paid off in September 
2016; the second loan will be completed in 2022.  Annual payment - $146,619.  
Remaining principal is $549,308. 


 Private Placement Loan.  $3 million loan acquired in 2008 for needed capital 
improvements.  Paid off in 2028.  The interest rate for this loan reset in 2018 and 
will be reduced from 4.75% to 3.10%, reducing the annual payment by 
approximately $18,000. Annual payment in FY20 - $225,045.  Remaining 
principal is $1,917,232.   


 
District Reserves and Funds and Loan Balances show the District’s continuing 
healthy financial picture.   
 
As discussed above reserve balances are a good measure of the health of the District’s 
finances.  For FY20, District Policy Reserves are at $1,347,574 and Reserves Above 
District Policy at the end of the fiscal year are $2,100,013 with total reserves at 
$3,447,587. 
 
The detailed FY20 Budget is included as Attachment A.   
 
 
 
 







FY 17-18


FINAL 


(CASH)*


 FY18-19 


BUDGET


FY 18-19


Projected


 FY 19-20


BUDGET 


 Difference 


FY20-FY19 


Budgets FY 2019-20


REVENUE


OPERATING REVENUE


4031 · Water Bill Revenue


4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Charge 279,369 288,172     287,750     296,383 8,211            
3% rate increase based on 


projected


4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,550,404 1,557,162  1,596,916  1,644,824 87,662          
3% rate increase based on 


projected


597,461 638,176     615,385     633,846 (4,330)           
Flat sales, 3% increase based on 


projected


4031.1. · Total Water Sales 2,147,865  2,195,338  2,212,301  2,278,670  83,332          


Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,427,234 2,483,510 2,500,051 2,575,053 91,543          


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


4445 · Grant Proceeds 36,424 0 0 -                 -                    


1700 · Interest 8,161 8,000         8,000         8,000         -                    


3600 · Construction New Services 8,235 7,000         6,700         7,000         


3601 · Construction Service Upgrades 11,506 4,000         3,000         3,000         


4032 · Rent
96,470 98,600       110,000     105,000     6,400            


Crystal $1361/mo = $16,322


AT&T $7400/mo = $88,800


4040 · Miscellaneous Income
2,384 1,500         3,000         1,500         -                    


USBank CC refunds


So. Cty Credit 


4117 · SCWA Reimbursement 0 2,500         2,745         -                 (2,500)           


CALWEP dues reimbursed thru 


2019.  Sonoma Water Contract 


under negotiation.
Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 163,180 121,600 133,445 124,500 2,900            


Total Income 2,590,414 2,605,110 2,633,496 2,699,553 94,443          


EXPENSES


OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS


Salary


5910 · Wages 777,596 811,200 825,000     903,046     91,846          GM & AC full time.


5912 · Overtime 28,256 34,120 33,900       34,307       187                


5916 · On-Call Pay 34,590 34,950 35,000       34,950       -                    


5918 · Extra help - Contract 36,931 34,100 36,900       34,100       -                    


877,373 914,370 930,800 1,006,400 92,030          


Benefits


5500 · Flex Spending 820 0 0 0 -                    


5920 · Retirement net EE share


64,100 75,281 70,000 95,927 20,646          


Employees pay employee share; 


Unfunded L = $37000; ER Rate 


8.418%


JK: ER Rate for FY 2019-20 is 


9.680% for 2%@55; 6.985 for 


2%@62


5920 · Retirement UL


112,003 105,000 125,450 120,000 15,000          


JK:  Mandatory UL $57000 + 


Suggested Extra pymnt $63000 = 


$120,000


5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 15,062 15,646 15,646 16,761 1,115             


5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 186,420 190,000 190,000 237,000     47,000          


5931 · Retiree health
7,698 7,680 7,900 7,680 -                    


Includes contribution to CERBT 


of $3000; Per JK cost per retiree 


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance


47,222 25,605 28,000 37,000 11,395          


Increased from 103% to 131%.  


Projected premiums will now be 


around $37,000 projecting for 


estimated wage increases.


433,325 419,212 436,996 514,368 95,156          


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,310,698 1,333,582 1,367,796 1,520,768 187,186        


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications  


6040-I · Internet service 2,016 2,350         2,350         2,350         -                    


Comcast -$86.13/month: $1034


GotoMyPC $47.90/mo = $575


Sonic.net $47.90/mo (A) = $575


6040-C · Cell Phones 4,076 4,050         4,200         4,900         850                


Verizon $65/mo: $780, GM-$600


Misc parts/holders: $200


Cell phone reimburse $275/mo - 


$3300


6040-P · Pagers & Radios 470 680            620            680            -                    
American Messaging $40/mo: 


$480


6040-T · Telephones 16,671 18,000       18,000       22,900       4,900            
Ans. Service: $2500


AT&T Phones: $1,400/mo: 
23,233 25,080 25,170 30,830 5,750            


Insurances


6101 · Liability & Auto Ins. 36,181 33,000       42,000       44,000       11,000          


36,181 33,000 42,000 44,000 11,000          


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 11,743 14,000       15,500       21,000       7,000            GM-$6,000


6151 · Office Maintenance 7,148 7,300         5,000         6,000         (1,300)           
Alarm System - $130/qtr.=$520


SR Computers - $195/mo = 
18,891 21,300 20,500 27,000 5,700            


Maint/Repair - Facilities -                    


6085 · Janitorial Services 6,373 9,445         8,800         8,800         (645)              
Maria Reyes (office Janitorial): 


$125/mo  = $1500


3,201 5,000         6,000         5,000         -                    


25,369 40,000       50,000       50,000       10,000          


31,594 45,000       70,000       50,000       5,000            Well # 6 El Bonita rehab $18,000.


6143 · Generator Maintenance 6,836 1,000         1,000         1,000         -                    
Not a planned major maintenance 


year.
73,373 100,445 135,800 114,800 14,355          


 Attachment A


Sweetwater Springs Water District                                                  


FY 2019-2020 Operating and Capital Budget


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage Charges + 


Other


Total Salary


Total Benefits


Total Communications


Total Insurances


FY 2019-20 OPERATING BUDGET


6100 · SCADA System


6180 · Distribution System Repairs


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities







Miscellaneous Expenses  


6280 · Memberships 11,082 11,500       12,000       12,020       520                


USA $700


AWWA $420


CSDA $6800


6303 · Claims 16,070 1,500         500            1,500         -                    


6593 · Governmental Fees 4,700 22,000       18,000       15,000       (7,000)           


Elections costs: $0


Notice of Determination $230


Parcel List $270


LAFCO $6,700


Hazmat $1300


Operator license fees $400


System fees $9000
31,852 35,000 30,500 28,520 (6,480)           


Office Expense -                    


6410 · Postage 15,744 16,000       16,000       17,000       1,000            
Billing (2000 pieces @ $.50 X 12 


months) = $12,000


6430 · Printing Expense 7,752 7,500         7,500         7,500         -                    
Window Envelopes $1100


Return Envelopes $800


6461 · Office Supplies 4,111 5,000         5,500         6,000         1,000            
Supplies $4000


Plants/Landscaping $150


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 553 1,100         1,100         1,100         -                    
Press Democrat $475


Legal Notices $400


6890 · Computers/Software 1,560 2,500         1,700         2,500         -                    
Antivirus softsware $60


Cloud software $70


6579 · Furniture 844 500            500            -                 (500)              


30,564 32,600 32,300 34,100       1,500            


Operating Supplies


6300 · Chemicals 11,979 20,000       18,500 20,000       -                    


6880 · Tools and Equipment
5,676 5,000         5,000 $7,000.00 2,000            


Leak listener $3000 Mini Jack 


hammer $450. Chain saw $400.
6881 · Safety Equipment 1,262 1,200         2,200 1,200         -                    


18,917 26,200 25,700 28,200 2,000            


Professional Services


6083 · Laundry Service 1,283 -                 -                 -                 -                    


6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 11,611 12,500       13,500       12,500       -                    


6570 · Consultant Fees 17,000 18,000       45,000       58,000       40,000          


Cost of Service Study: $40,000       


IEDA $12,500                                                                                                      


Open Spatial (Mapping): $4,200


6610 · Legal 11,565 20,000       10,000       20,000       -                    


6630 · Audit/Accounting 38,832 39,000       42,000       42,000       3,000            
ADP $65/2 weeks = $1300


W-2s = $80


80,291 89,500 110,500 132,500 43,000          


Rents & Leases


6820 · Equipment 1,409 3,300         3,300         3,300         -                    
Postage machine $1300


Action rents: $2000


6840 · Building & Warehouse 29,672 29,790       29,790       29,790       -                    Rent: $2,482.50/mo = $29,790


31,081 33,090 33,090 33,090 -                    


Transportation & Travel  


7120 · Seminars & related travel 473 2,650         2,650         3,650         1,000            
JK - $250, EF-$1,000


LK and CMH - $400 


7201 · Vehicle Gas 18,367 20,000       18,000       20,000       -                    


7300 · Travel Reimbursements 5,428 6,400         6,400         7,400         1,000            
GM-$1,000


KG $400/mo = $4800 (F)
24,268 29,050 27,050 31,050 2,000            


Uniforms


6021.1 · Boots 1,320 1,500         1,500         1,500         -                    $225 X 7 = $1450


6021.3 · T-shirts 1,694 1,800         1,700         1,800         -                    


6021.4 · Jackets 0 240            240            240            -                    2 jackets


3,014 3,540 3,440 3,540 -                    


Utilities


7320 · Electricity 97,850 100,000     107,000 110,000     10,000           


7321 · Propane 2,820 3,000         3,000 3,000         -                    


100,670 103,000 110,000 113,000 10,000          


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 472,335 531,805 596,050 620,630 88,825          


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,783,033 1,865,387 1,963,846 2,141,398 276,011        


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $807,381 $739,723 $669,650 $558,155 (181,568)$     


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8517 · Field/Office equipment 500 -                 0 -                 


8573 · Vehicles 0 50,000       47,000 -                 (50,000)         


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 60,723 -                 0 24,000       24,000          
Harrison Rd reinforcement 


$12,000. Park Ave roof $12,000.
8511.6 · Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 -                 -                    


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 61,223 50,000 47,000 24,000 (26,000)         


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 278,615 288,172 288,172 296,383 8,211            


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF - PY Surplus 0 0 0 -                 -                    


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 320,000 360,000 290,000 190,000     (170,000)       


8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000       15,000 15,000       -                    


8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000       25,000 25,000       -                    


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 638,615 688,172 618,172 526,383 (161,789)       


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 107,543 1,551 4,478 7,772 6,221            


Total Utilities


Total Miscellaneous Expenses


Total Office Expense


Total Operating Supplies


Total Professional Services


Total Rents & Leases


Total Transportation & Travel


Total Uniforms







CAPITAL BUDGET


REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Annual Assessment - New Services 15,764 27,000       27,000       27,000       -                    


Annual Assessment (County) 726,080 710,000     710,000     710,000     -                    


Prior Year Assessment 22,709 40,000       40,000       40,000       -                    


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 278,615 288,172     288,172     296,383     8,211            


Interest 17,075 15,000       25,000       25,000       10,000          


Guernewood Park Modeling Funds 41,800 -                 -                 -                 -                    


Transfer from Reserves 435,000


USDA 2018 Bond 1,535,000 0 Bond closed in Spring


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 320,000 360,000     290,000     190,000     (170,000)       


Transfers to In-House Constr. from Operations 25,000 25,000       25,000       25,000       -                    


TOTAL REVENUE 1,882,043 1,465,172 2,940,172 1,313,383 (151,789)       


EXPENSES


DEBT PAYMENTS


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 65,783 64,284       79,752       98,821       
34,537          


2015 GO Bond Refi: $64284.91


2018 GO Bond: $34,535.70


Cap One Revenue Bond 564,344 563,194     563,194     566,558     3,364            


State Loan Payments 146,618 146,619     146,619     146,619     -                     


Private Placement Loan 234,013 225,045     225,045     216,062     (8,983)           


TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,010,758 999,142 1,014,610 1,028,060 28,918          


2017 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 104,917 -             


2017 CIP Construction 659,940 -             


2018 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 36,823 100,692


2018 CIP Construction 0 932,519


2019 CIP 250,000     


Guernewood Park Modeling Expense 39,284 -                    


In-House Construction Projects 25,775 25,000       25,000       25,000       25,000          


Total Capital Expenses 866,739     275,000     1,058,210  25,000       (250,000)       


TOTAL EXPENSES 1,877,497 1,274,142 2,072,820 1,053,060 (221,082)       


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 4,546 191,030 867,352 260,323 69,293          


Net Capital Funding 477,028 442,581 370,040 268,095


Sum of the operating budget 


surplus, annual assessments, 


CIRF, CDRC, and capital interest 


minus total debt payments.


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 123,508     279,808     279,808     321,210     41,402          


96,475       466,347     466,347     535,350     69,003          


102,315     249,786     249,786     257,015     7,230            


Capital Reserve 250,000     250,000     250,000     250,000     -                    


   Total District Policy 773,243     1,245,940  1,245,940  1,363,574  117,634        


TOTAL Reserves EOY 2,314,663  2,410,774  3,186,493  3,454,587  1,043,813     


   Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,541,419  1,164,834  1,940,552  2,091,013  926,179        


DISTRICT FUNDS  


266,474     100,000     886,837     1,022,298  922,298         


123,508     279,808     466,347     321,210     41,402          


96,475       274,995     279,808     535,350     260,355        


102,315     475,027     499,786     507,015     31,989          


75,982       79,315       79,315       79,315       -                    


10,850       25,850       25,850       40,850       15,000          


791,250     802,112     802,112     802,112     -                    


500,000     -             -             -             -                    


146,863           146,438 146,438     146,438     -                    


-             -             -             -                 -                    


200,945     200,000     200,000     208,000     8,000            4% return


STATE LOANS (0700,0900)


Operating Budget Reserve (10%+15% of Operating Exp)


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt)


CIRF (7106-0600)


OPERATING RESERVE ( 0300)


OPERATIONS (0100)


CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY RESERVE (1100)


IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION (0500)


BUILDING (0200)


CAP ONE AND CITIZENS BANK LOAN (1200)


FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS (0400)


STATE LOANS RESERVES (0800&1000)


PARS*





		Item V-B.1 - Appr FY 20 Budget

		Item V-B.4 - Resolution 19-07 Appr FY 20  Budget

		Item V-B.2 - Budget Report-FY 2019-20

		Board of Directors

		General Manager

		Ed Fortner

		Sweetwater Springs Water District

		2019-20 Fiscal Year (FY20) Budget





		Item V-B.3 - Attachment A






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT


TO: Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C  


FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager


Meeting Date: June 6, 2019 


Subject:  CARLOS ABELA 14631 Old Cazadero Rd Wall


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  


Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action. 


FISCAL IMPACT:  


None


DISCUSSION:  


SSWD Staff and GM have been communicating with Mr. Abela since late March
2019 about the violation of SSWD policy 3090.30 allowing access to  District
infrastructure, specifically our water meter serving the residence in question.
Mr.  Abela  attended  the  May  2,  2019,  District  Board  meeting  presenting  his
perspective of the situation caused by his construction of a concrete block wall
over our service line directly abutting the water meter.  After multiple warnings
and declined offers of compromise, Mr. Abela completed construction of his wall.
The District now needs to decide whether to relocate the water meter outside
the wall and bill the customer for the time and materials, terminate service, or
find another alternative.  The GM did communicate several more times with Mr.
Abela after the May 2019 Board meeting, which resulted in no change in the
customer’s  perspective.   A  more  detailed  memo is attached.   Staff  and GM
recommend we follow our policy consistent with previous similar situations or
terminate service.







 
 
 
 
 
          Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 
 
 
 
Memo:  Mr. Carlos Abela 14631 Old Cazadero Road Right of Access to Meters Policy 
 
To: Sweetwater Springs Water District Board, June 6, 2019 
 
CC:  
  
 
 
Dear Board Members, 
 


Mr. Carlos Abela of 14631 Old Cazadero Road appeared at the May 2, 2019, SSWD 
Board meeting to complain about the District’s guidance related to Mr. Abela’s construction of a 
concrete block wall over the service line and directly abutting the District’s water meter serving 
his residence.  Mr. Abela initially called the District without giving his name and asked a generic 
question about constructing a “fence” that would not be blocking access to the water meter.  Our 
Account Clerk informed Mr. Abela that his “fence” would be fine as long as it does not block 
our access.  We discovered the construction when our meter reader discovered the ditch for the 
footer of the wall.  Our meter reader informed the person working on the footer that the footer 
and wall would violate our policy, gave the person our phone number, and asked him to tell the 
owner to call our office and speak to our Field Manager.  The next morning, our meter reader 
returned to the site and discovered that the concrete footer had been poured despite our warning.  
After learning of the construction, our field staff followed up.  Staff has met Mr. Abela on site 
and given him the direction to either remove the portion of the wall in conflict or we will have to 
move the meter outside his wall and charge him for the time and materials involved in the move.  
Staff and the GM have had numerous phone and email communications with Mr. Abela, 
consistently giving him the same answers to his concerns.  Staff and the GM have given Mr. 
Abela our policy related to obstruction of access to District infrastructure.  After informing Mr. 
Abela of our policy and sending him a letter with the policy attached, Mr. Abela insisted on a 
voicemail that he be given the “legal underpinnings” of our policy.  The GM attained a legal 
opinion (below) based on our policy as approved by resolution and ordinance, which are based in 
California State Law (Water Code).  Mr. Abela continues to debate and disagree with the 
District’s policy.  The District has enforced this policy numerous times.  The legal opinion 
referenced earlier is stated below.   


 
The statutory basis of Sweetwater Springs Water District's authority to levy the meter 


relocation charge as requested by Mr. Abela, customer: 


P.O. Box 48, 17081 Hwy. 116, Suite B, Guerneville, CA  95446      707-869-4000      FAX 707-869-4005 
Email: sws@monitor.net      web site: www.sweetwatersprings.com 







P.O. Box 48, 17081 Hwy. 116, Suite B, Guerneville, CA  95446      707-869-4000      FAX 707-869-4005 
Email: sws@monitor.net      web site: www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 
Sweetwater Springs Water District was formed as a County Water District pursuant to the 


provisions of Water Code Section 30000 et seq.  Section 31010, which provides that Sweetwater 
Springs Water District has the authority to perform any act necessary to furnish sufficient water 
for all present and anticipated future uses.  Ensuring the accurate measurement and billing of use 
of water by means of water meters is included within this authority. These laws establish the 
purpose of our existing District policies.  Section 31007 provides that the District may collect 
rates and charges sufficient to pay (1) the operating expenses of the district, including the costs 
of relocating a water meter, together with many other charges; (2) to pay for repairs and 
depreciation of works owned by the District; (3) and to pay principal and interest on bonded and 
other debt. 


 
 These sections together provide your elected Board the discretionary power to levy 
whatever rates and charges are required to pay such expenses.  The authority to raise rates is 
subject to property owner majority protest procedures pursuant to Proposition 218,  but  there is 
no similar limitation on the power of the Board under these statutes to levy "fees and charges" 
for services rendered, so long as the amount of the fee or charge does not exceed your cost of 
providing the service for which the fee or charge is levied. This is the legal standard that applies 
to our levy of a meter re-location charge, as well as any other District charges, fees, or charges 
other than water usage rates. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Ed Fortner 
General Manager 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
efortner@sweetwatersprings.com 
707-869-4000 
 



mailto:efortner@sweetwatersprings.com



		Item V-C - Carlos Abela 14631 Old Cazadero Rd Wall

		Item V-C.1 - GM Memo Carlos Abela 14631 Old Cazadero Rd Wall






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT


TO: Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D  


FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager


Meeting Date: June 6, 2019 


Subject:  STRATEGIC PLANNING


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  


Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action. 


FISCAL IMPACT:  


None


DISCUSSION:  


At  the  May 2,  2019 Board  Meeting  during  the Cost  of  Service  agenda item
discussion, the importance of first developing Strategic Planning for the District
was stressed.  Strategic Planning can be facilitated by the GM working with the
Board, staff, and the public.  Initially, a District Vision, Mission, and goals should
be  established.   The  stakeholders  should  decide  what  defines  Sweetwater
Springs Water District  presently  and what we envision the District  as in  the
future.  Typically, a SWOT (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats)
analysis  should  be explored  to  help  develop  the core  values  of  the  District.
Ultimately, the strategic plan will  show clarity of purpose and will  be a living
document we can all be proud to share with our customers, community, and
stakeholders  as  a  template  for  success.   I  propose  the  Board  discusses  a
timeline and we begin the planning process in early FY 2020 to be followed by a
Cost of Service Study shaped in accordance with the newly developed Vision and
Mission.  Several links to other Water District’s published Strategic Plans are
available for  review at the CSDA website.   The GM recently received log on
credentials for all the Board members for the CSDA website.


  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT


TO: Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E  


FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager


Meeting Date: June 6, 2019 


Subject:  WATER TAX UPDATE


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  


Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action.


FISCAL IMPACT:  


None


DISCUSSION:  


At the May 2, 2019 Board Meeting an update was given on the proposed water
tax in AB 217 and the opposition letter to State legislators and the Governor
written by the GM.  In that letter, SSWD opposed AB 217 and supported SB 669,
which  proposes  the  revenue  stream for  the  benefit  of  disadvantaged  water
systems come from State surpluses.  Since that update, AB 217 has advanced
out of committee with amendments and still has the water tax element.


As of May 16, 2019, SB 669 has been held in Senate Appropriations and will not
be  considered  for  another  year.   This  action  follows  Senate  Budget
Subcommittee No. 2 taking action May 15 to reject Governor Newsom’s budget
trailer  bill  with  its  proposed  water  tax  and  instead  approve  $150  million  in
General  Fund  dollars  be  appropriated  annually  to  the  Safe  And  Affordable
Drinking  Water  Fund.   The  GM  will  keep  the  board  updated  as  this  issue
proceeds.


  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VIII   
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: June 6, 2019   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in April were 13,319 units (30.6 AF Monte Rio 
cycle), and production was 46.3 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and production were 
slightly lower (29.9 AF and 44.7 AF, respectively).  Figure 1 shows sales, production and 
% difference for the combined systems; the water loss trend went up a bit this month.  
Looking at the data over the last ten years, water production has dropped approximately 
29%, and sales have dropped 18%.  Water loss percentage was around 30% and now is in 
the 15-20% range.  Much of the production and water loss drop can be attributed to the 
capital projects funded by Redevelopment.  The sales drop is probably due to the drought 
public education; it's unlikely historic use levels will return soon.   


 
2. Leaks:  In April we had 8 total leak repairs with 44.5 hours on it.  Four leaks were in 


Guerneville and four in Monte Rio.  That is more leaks and fewer man-hours compared to 
the prior month and more leaks and hours compared to April one year ago (3 and 6).  
Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with a total leak line as well.  Looking at 
the leaks chart over the last ten years we've come down from around 300 leaks per month 
to just over 100 - quite a difference and very noticeable in what the field crews are able to 
do - address ongoing issues with in-house projects instead of chasing leaks every day.     


   
3. Guerneville Rainfall:  May rainfall was significant.  5.3” of rainfall this month is much 


higher than the long-term average and moves the yearly total slightly above the long-term 
average for the year.  No flooding occurred in May.               


 
4. River Lane Property Sale:  The GM was copied on a letter from Mark O’Flynn to Adam 


Rivera with Hogan Land Services objecting to the survey done on behalf of Russian River 
Rec and Park District for the property owned by SSWD.  Mr. O’Flynn objects to a 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
June 6, 2019 
 


reference to his land and the reference of a trust doctrine applying.  The GM spoke with 
Paige McDonald on this subject.  RRR&PD will discuss this issue at their next Board 
meeting, and the SSWD board will be updated.        


  
5.  2019 CIP:  The ATEK filter equipment has been ordered and first payment processed.  


ATEK has advised us that the lead time is now 2-4 weeks for delivery of the filter 
equipment.  Piazza has poured the concrete pad at the Monte Rio treatment site, and District 
staff had a tree cleared that was leaning dangerously close to the treatment area.  Contracts 
will be signed and executed when delivery lead time is firmly established.   


  
6. In-House Construction Projects: There was one in-house construction project in May, an 


upgrade to a 1” service at 17653 Orchard Ave. (New meter, GV) Tapped 6” main from 
Orchard and abandoned ¾” service on Greentree.  There were no toilet rebates.  


 
7. Cyber Security: President Tim Lipinski raised the issue of SSWD cybersecurity needs in 


light of recent news accounts of the City of Baltimore and other victims of ransom-ware 
attacks.  The GM and staff are investigating any potential SSWD vulnerabilities and will 
agendize a discussion at the July Board meeting.    


 
8. July Board Meeting: July Board meeting falls on July 4th.  July 3rd is the recommended 


replacement date. 
  


9.  Gantt Chart: For June, the Gantt Chart shows the Budget schedule; that's on the agenda 
but a month behind because of the flooding.    


 
          


 
 


 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
June 6, 2019 
 


 
 
 
 


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 4 
June 6, 2019 
 







 







General Manager’s Report  Page 6 of 4 
June 6, 2019 
 


May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 FY20+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2018 CIP Phase Award of Contract


        2018 CIP Construction Starts


·        USDA Bond


        2019 CIP Construction Starts
Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


District Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: June 6, 2019  



